STATE OF NEVADA



VAUGHN HARTUNG
Chairman

DAWN GIBBONS
Commissioner

R. DAVID GROOVER
Commissioner

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

MINUTES OF THE December 11, 2023 GENERAL SESSION

WEBEX LINK: https://businessnv2.webex.com

DIAL IN NUMBER: 1-844-621-3956 MEETING ACCESS CODE: 2481 340 4322 MEETING PASSWORD: Dm8uT5zaZ7A

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

Chairman Vaughn Hartung called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.

2. Roll Call

Present in Reno: Chairman Vaughn Hartung Present in Las Vegas: Commissioner Dawn Gibbons, Commissioner R. David Groover, Deputy Commissioner David Rickert, Administrative Attorney Patricia Erickson, Applications Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton, Financial Analyst Paul Servello, Senior Deputy Attorney General Louis Csoka, Interim Chief of Enforcement Adam Teti

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Senior Deputy Attorney General Louis Csoka led a recital of the pledge.

4. Public Comment

None

5. Approval of Agenda

Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested Items 69, 73, 74 and 79 be removed from consideration, that Item 84 follow Item 101 and that Items 90 and 91 did NOT require retroactive approval.

Approved as modified 3-0

- 6. Approval of the Minutes of the October 12, Agenda Meeting Approved 3-0
- 7. Approval of the Minutes of the October 13, Adoption of Regulations Meeting *Approved 3-0*
- 8. Approval of the Minutes of the October 13, Special Session for F1 Event Meeting

9. Briefings from the Commissioners

Chairman Hartung wished all those present a safe and uneventful holiday. Commissioner Gibbons mentioned the tragic event at UNLV and asked that all those involved be remembered. Commissioner Groover mentioned the changes law enforcement has made since the 1 October event and commended the Authority's Enforcement staff.

10. Briefing from the Deputy Commissioner

Deputy Commissioner Rickert extended congratulations to Hope DiBartolomeo and Desiree Main, both of whom received promotions. He briefly discussed the ongoing acquisition for new technology for the driver permitting database, that the F1 event was very successful, with respect to driver permitting and inspections. He stated the SuperBowl planning was to continue. He also stated that the policies and procedures continue to be streamlined. He echoed the comments made by the Commissioners regarding the event at UNLV and also commended Enforcement Staff on their response.

11. Report of Legal Counsel

Senior Deputy Attorney General Csoka reported the courts found favorably for the Authority in the Sierra West, Highroller and Marji matters, that in the WMT matter, filings were due January 16, 2024 and that the Western Trails matter was in Federal Court.

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS

Items 12 through 64 were considered collectively. Approved 3-0

- 12. Citation 21501 and Impound I-4552 and I-4554 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle and trailer registered to and Citation 21501 issued to Jason Campbell for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (DG)
- 13. Citation 22995 and 22996 and Impound I-4818 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 22995 and 22996 issued to Leroy Lopez for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DG)
- **14.** Citations 23766, 23767, 23768, 23769, 23770 and 23771 issued to 1st Response Towing, Inc. d/b/a The Tow Truck Company for violations of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.305 (6 counts) and NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.51(7)(I) (2 counts) (DG)
- **15. Citation 24009 and 24010 and Impound I-4822** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 24009 and 24010 issued to Junie Ladaga for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DG)
- **16. Citation 24045** issued to None Stop Towing, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11 and NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.305 (DG)
- **17. Citations 24159, 24160, 24161 and 24162** issued to Lyft, Inc. for violations of NRS 706A.160(2)(b), (6 counts) NRS 706A.180(2) (18 counts), NRS 706A.160(2)(a)(5) (25 counts), NRS 706A.160(2)(a)(4) (2 counts), NRS 706A.160(2)(a)(2) (7 counts), NRS 706A.160(4) (47 counts) and NRS 706A.160(2)(a)(3) (5 counts) (DG)
- **18.** Citation 24640 and Impound I-4829 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 24640 issued to Mustapha Tijan Sallah for violation of NRS 706.386 (DG)

- 19. Citation 24680 and 24992 and Impound I-4774 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 24680 and 24992 issued to Darshan Lal for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DG)
- 20. Citation 24726 issued to Whittlesea Taxi for a violation of NAC 706.194 (DG)
- 21. Citation 24729 and Impound I-4367 and I-4368 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle and a trailer registered to and Citation 24729 issued to Roberto Macias Jr. for violation of NRS 706.386 (DG)
- 22. Citation 24732 and Impound I-4562 and I-4563 the impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of vehicles registered to and Citation 24732 issued to David Allan/Aloha Movers LLC for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (DG)
- **23. Citation 24795** issued to Ronald Bodley for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and NAC 706.1378 (DG)
- **24. Citation 24798** issued to David Knable for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and NAC 706.1378 (DG)
- **25. Citation 24799** issued to Hason Hubbard for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.213 and NAC 706.1378 (DG)
- **26. Citation 24800** issued to Lynn Wasp for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.211 and NAC 706.1378 (DG)
- **27. Citation 24889 and Impound I-4808** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 24889 issued to George David Fischetti/Reliable Movers, LLC for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (DG)
- **28. Citation 24951, 24952 and 24953** issued to Eagle Limo, LLC for violation of NAC 706.381 (78 counts), NAC 706.354 and NRS 706.398 (DG)
- **29.** Citation 24990 and 24991 and Impound I-4773 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 24990 and 24991 issued to Abdullah Tuncel for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DG)
- **30. Impound I-4775** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Lily Lines (DG)
- **31. Impound I-4920** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Company of Arizona (DG)
- **32. Impound I-5020** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul Company of Arizona (DG)
- **33.** Citation 21458 issued to A-1 Auto Repair Tow for violation of NAC 706.2473 REF. 49 CFR 391.23 (2 counts) and NAC 706.2473 REF. 49 CFR 391.25 (2 counts) (RDG)
- **34. Citation 22365** issued to Stephen B. Perry d/b/a Salt Flats Towing for violation of NAC 706.157 (RDG)

- **35.** Citation 22398 issued to R & R Transportation, LLC for violation of NAC 706.191 (RDG)
- **36.** Citation 22758 issued to Whittlesea Taxi for a violation of NRS 706.471 (RDG)
- **37. Citation 23714** issued to ProTour and Travel Services, LLC for a violation of NRS 706.462(2)(b)(1) (RDG)
- **38.** Citation 24237 and Impound I-4828 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 24237 issued to William Rice Jr./Rices Towing for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG)
- **39. Citation 24032** issued to Badly Scattered Land and Cattle Company d/b/a Medic Coach Service for violations of NAC 706.2473 REF. 49 CFR 391.11 (4 counts) and NRS 706.398 (RDG)
- **40. Citation 24051 and Impound I-4779** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 24051 issued to Muhammad Rehan for violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG)
- **41. Citation 24063 and Impound I-4825** the impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 24063 issued to Hongbin Qi for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG)
- 42. Citation 24561 issued to Diego De Leon for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG)
- **43. Citation 24632 and 24633 and Impound I-3276** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citations 24632 and 24633 issued to Rui Wang for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (RDG)
- **44. Citation 24730 and Impound I-4371** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 24730 issued to Rosaura Galvan-Cruz for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG)
- **45. Citation 24738 and Impound I-4681** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to and Citation 24738 issued to James Thong for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG)
- **46. Citation 24879** issued to Timothy McCarthy/Quality Moving Company for a violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG)
- **47. Citations 24985 and 24986** issued to Jesus Calderon for violations of NRS 706A.280 and NRS 706.386 (RDG)
- **48.** Citations 24999 and 25000 issued to Shen Guodung for violations of NRS 706A.280 and NRS 706.386 (RDG)
- **49. Impound I-4309** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Perla De Leon (RDG)
- **50. Impound I-4537** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Bonnie Morris (RDG)
- **51. Impound I-4921** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Josue Varela-Ventura (RDG)

- **52. Impound I-5026** The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Hertz Vehicles, LLC (RDG)
- **53. Citation 22340, 22341, 22342, 22343 and 22344** issued to Bekins A-1 Moving, Inc. d/b/a National Moving & Storage for a violation of NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 391.21, NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.23, NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.25, NAC 706.2473 ref, 49 CFR 382.301 (3 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 396.11, NAC 706.381 (3 counts), NAC 706.356, NAC 706.194 and NRS 706.398 (GA)
- **54. Citation 24042** issued to Tik's Quick Towing, LLC d/b/a Tik Tac Tows for violation of NAC 706.203(4)
- **55. Citation 24189** issued to H.I.S. International Tours (NY), Inc. d/b/a H.I.S. for violation of NRS 706.465
- **56. Citation 24190** issued to U.S. Party Bus LLC d/b/a U.S. Party Bus for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 396.17
- **57. Citation 24236** issued to Devon Banks/Devon & Friends Moving Company for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758
- **58. Citation 24267** issued to Sari Utschen for violation of NRS 706.386
- **59. Citation 24276** issued to Habtino Embafirash for violations of NAC 706.223 and NAC 706.311
- **60. Citation 24277** issued to Habtino Embafirash for violation of NAC 706.234
- **61. Citation 24278** issued to Josue Varela-Ventura for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758
- **62. Citation 24281** issued to Jialin Lu for violation of NRS 706.386
- **63. Citation 24282** issued to Teferi Asfaw for violation of NRS 706.386
- **64. Citation 24747 and 24749** issued to Rick's Mr. Tow for violation of NAC 706.311; NAC 706.420 and NAC 706.360

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE

Items 66 through 70 were considered collectively. Approved 3-0

65. Docket 22-10014 The Application of Luther Towing – Las Vegas, LLC d/b/a Luther Towing for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) *Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.*

- **Docket 23-03017** The Joint Application of James E. Tregellas and Linda L. Tregellas d/b/a A-1 Auto Repair and Tow Service to sell and transfer and A1Towing, LLC d/b/a A-1 Towing to purchase and acquire the authority to provide consent and non-consent tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada, granted under CPCN 8002. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
- **Docket 23-04016** The Joint Application of B & E, Inc. d/b/a SNAP Towing, to sell and transfer and Gofy, LTD to purchase and acquire 100% of the stock of B & E, Inc., a carrier authorized to provide consent and non-consent tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada, granted under CPCN 7042, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
- **68. Docket 23-06039** The Application of Lion Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
- **69. Docket 23-06042** The Application of Care Towing, LLC d/b/a Care Towing for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
- **70. Docket 23-08021** The Application of Lost Vegas Towing, LLC d/b/a Lost Vegas Towing for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent and non-consent tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE

Items 71 and 72 were considered collectively. Approved 3-0

- **71. Docket 23-04036** The Joint Application of Abraham Limo Service, Inc. d/b/a ALV, to sell and transfer and EmpireLV, LLC dba ALV to purchase and acquire the authority to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada, granted under CPCN 2159. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
- **72. Docket 23-06017** The Application of Diamond Transportation, LLC d/b/a Diamond Transportation, Diamond Trans, Diamond, for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. **(RDG)**
- **73. Docket 23-08019** The Joint Application of Royal Coach Tours, Inc. d/b/a Royal Coach Tours, to sell and transfer and TRK Holdings, LLC to purchase and acquire 100% of the stock of Royal Coach Tours, Inc., a carrier authorized to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada, granted under CPCN 2141, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG) *Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.*
- **74. Docket 23-08025** The Application of Carey Limousine Dallas, Inc. d/b/a Carey for final approval of interim authority for the period January 29, 2024 through February 14, 2024 of a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)

Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.

FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS

Items 75 through 80, with the exception of Item 79, were considered collectively. Approved 3-0

- **75. Docket 23-08002** The Application of 24/7 Limousines, LTD for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1065, Sub 5. Staff investigation concluded.
- **76. Docket 23-10009** The Application of American Investment Enterprises, LLC d/b/a AMR Operated by GMTCARE, LLC for final approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1034, Sub 4. Staff investigation concluded.
- 77. **Docket 23-10010** The Application of Integrity Taxi, LLC for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1121. Staff investigation concluded.
- **78. Docket 23-10013** The Application of Up In The Attic, LLC d/b/a #1Wolfpack Towing And Recovery for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 7448. Staff investigation concluded.
- **79. Docket 23-10006** The Application of GDT of Nevada, LLC d/b/a Fallon Towing, for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 7101, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded. *Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration.*
- **80. Docket 23-11007** The Application of Five Star Limo, LLC d/b/a Five Star Limo for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1113, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded.
- 81. Docket 23-11014 The Application of Reno Ryde, LLC d/b/a Reno Ryde for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1150. Staff investigation concluded. Applications Manager Liz Babcock wanted the commissioners to be aware that this is for two different types of vehicles, which is unusual for the taxi industry. All Commissioners commented that this is a natural progression for the industry. Approved 3-0

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS

Items 82 through 89, with the exception of Item 84, were considered collectively. Approved 3-0

- **82. Docket 21-11013** The Joint Application of Abraham Limo Services, Inc. d/b/a ALV, to sell and transfer and Crown Limo, LLC d/b/a Crown Limo to purchase and acquire the authority to provide charter limousine service within the Clark County, Nevada granted under CPCN 1104 Sub 3. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
- **83. Docket 22-07014** The Joint Application of AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Charter Services, AWG Ambassador, to sell and transfer and Universal Limousine Services, LLC d/b/a ULS to purchase and acquire the authority to provide charter limousine service within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 1068, Sub 9. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
- **84. Docket 23-02027** The Application of Reliance Care Enterprise, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide non-emergency medical transportation within Clark County, Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)

 Item to be considered after Item 101. James Kent, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant.

 Approved 3-0
- **85. Docket 23-03010** The Joint Application of Universal Limousine Services, LLC d/b/a ULS to sell and transfer and Host Transportation, LLC d/b/a Global Limousine Services to purchase and

- acquire the authority to provide charter limousine service within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 1132. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
- **86. Docket 23-05027** The Application of Abraham Limo Service, Inc. d/b/a ALV for an expansion of authority granted under CPCN 1090, Sub 2, within Clark and Nye Counties, Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)
 - Commissioner Gibbons offered the statement that the expansion was to eliminate certain restrictive language from the certificate.
- **87. Docket 23-07006** The Application of Anytime Anywhere Piano Moving, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to operate as a household goods mover within Washoe, Carson City, Churchill, and Douglas Counties on the one hand and the State of Nevada on the other. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)

 **Regular Manion appeared via WabEx and stated the opinion that when applying for a husiness.
 - Brandon Manion appeared via WebEx and stated the opinion that when applying for a business license, it should be mentioned to the Applicant that a CPCN is required as well.
- **88. Docket 23-07022** The Application of Cartzilla, LLC d/b/a Cartzilla for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide scenic tour service within Clark and Nye Counties, Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)
 - Brent Carson, Esq. and owners, Kurt Osburn and Simoa Radole appeared on behalf of the Applicant. A brief discussion ensued regarding the unique type of vehicle to be utilized.
- **89. Docket 23-08034** The Application of Another Side Of Las Vegas Tours, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide scenic tour service within Clark County, Nevada, and for approval of their proposed logo. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG) *Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. submitted a verbal protest as to the lack of a market requirement by staff. Kenneth Lippman, Applicant, appeared.*

REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE

Items 90 through 95 were considered collectively. Approved as modified 3-0

- **90. Docket 23-09022** The temporary discontinuance from September 27, 2023, through March 27, 2024 and the extended date of September 27, 2024, of service provided by Dusty's Roadside Assistance and Tow, LLC, under CPCN 7482, and if denied, Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. This requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.
- 91. **Docket 23-09023** The temporary discontinuance from September 27, 2023, through March 27, 2024 and the extended date of September 27, 2024, of service provided by JC Towing & Transport, LLC d/b/a JC Towing & Transport, under CPCN 7496, and if denied, Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. This requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.
- **92. Docket 23-10002** The temporary discontinuance from October 13, 2023, through April 13, 2024 and the extended date of October 13, 2024, of service provided by 3K Express Towing, LLC under CPCN 7532, and if denied, Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.
- **93. Docket 23-10030** The temporary discontinuance from October 26, 2023, through April 1, 2024 and the extended date of October 26, 2024, of service provided by VC Tours, LLC d/b/a Virginia City Tours, under CPCN 2271, and if denied, Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.

- 94. Docket 23-10031 The temporary discontinuance from October 26, 2023, through April 25, 2024 and the extended date of October 27, 2024, of service provided by City on the Side, LLC d/b/a Retro Tour Las Vegas, under CPCN 1142, Sub 1, and if denied, Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.
- **95. Docket 23-11003** The temporary discontinuance from October 31, 2023, through April 30, 2024 and the extended date of October 31, 2024, of service provided by U.S.A. Towing, Inc., under CPCN 1142, Sub 1, 7273, Sub 3, and if denied, Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. This requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded.

REQUEST TO EXTEND TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE

96. Docket 22-11023 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from November 1, 2023 through May 1, 2024, of tow car services provided by 24/7 Towing. Inc. d/b/a 24/7 Towing under CPCN 7119, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock indicated the carrier has been out over a year and that Staff does not support the request. Request Denied 3-0 Order to Show Cause approved 3-0

EXPIRED TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE

Items 97 through 99 were considered collectively. Order to Show Cause Approved 3-0

- **97. Docket 22-07011** The expired temporary discontinuance granted from December 29, 2022, through June 29, 2023, of services provided by We Move Las Vegas, LLC d/b/a We Move Las Vegas, under CPCN 3369, and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.
- **98. Docket 22-10001** The expired temporary discontinuance granted from March 30, 2023, through September 30, 2023, of services provided by Recovery Towing, LLC under CPCN 7519, and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.
- 99. Docket 22-10017 The expired temporary discontinuance granted from October 17, 2022, through May 1, 2023 and extended to October 17, 2023, of services provided by Aladdin Limousine Services, Inc. d/b/a Tahoe Tours, under CPCN 2185, and Staff's recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded.

PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION

100. Docket 23-08023 Petition for Reconsideration, submitted by Medlife Transportation, requesting reconsideration of both the 08.14.2023 initial Order Denying Medlife's PLTI and reconsideration of the full Authority's 09.14.2023 Order Affirming the Denial of the PLTI; both orders were filed in Docket 22-07019. Also requesting full Authority consideration of Medlife's Motion to Re-Open Proceedings in Docket 23-02027.

Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. appeared on behalf of Medlife and detailed her request for reconsideration and request to re-open the hearing. James Kent, Esq. and Steve LaTulippe, appeared on behalf of Carevans and offered a brief summary of the process. A discussion ensued.

101. Docket 23-08024 Petition for Reconsideration, submitted by Medlife Transportation, requesting reconsideration of both the 08.09.2023 Order Denying Medlife's PLTI and reconsideration of the full Authority's 09.14.2023 Order Affirming the Denial of the PLTI; both orders were filed in Docket 23-02027.

Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. asked to withdraw the Petition for Reconsideration as the Application is ripe for approval. Acceptance of the withdrawal 3-0 Item 84 was considered after Item 101

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS

Items 102 through 105 were considered collectively. Approved 3-0

- **102. Docket 23-08036** The voluntary cancellation of At Your Service Towing, LLC, CPCN 7548. Staff investigation concluded.
- **103. Docket 23-09001** The voluntary cancellation of Isnagas Brother, LLC d/b/a Isnagas Brother, CPCN 7459. Staff investigation concluded.
- **104. Docket 23-09004** The voluntary cancellation of All the Right Moves, LLP, CPCN 3340, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded.
- **105. Docket 23-09021** The voluntary cancellation of Fast Towing King, LLC d/b/a Ken Towing King, CPCN 7527. Staff investigation concluded.

ORDERS TO SHOW CAUSE

- 106. Docket 23-03004 Order to Show Cause issued to National Transportation Services, Inc. d/b/a NTS as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 2092 should not be revoked. Tabled from prior general session. Staff investigation concluded.

 Applications Manager Liz Babcock detailed the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's recommendation for revocation of the CPCN. Revocation approved 3-0
- **107. Docket 23-09006** Order to Show Cause issued to Nevada Busing, LLC as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 2233 should not be revoked. Staff investigation concluded. *Applications Manager Liz Babcock detailed the procedural history of the docket and indicated staff's recommendation for revocation of the CPCN. Revocation approved 3-0*

PETITION FOR LEAVE TO INTERVENE

108. Docket No. 23-06012 – The Authority will determine whether to affirm or reverse the Order Granting the Livery Operator Association's Petition for Leave to Intervene in the Application of Western Limousine for the sale and transfer of authority to EmpireLV.

Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. appeared on behalf of the LOA, Brian Hardy, Esq. appeared on behalf of EmpireLV. A discussion ensued regarding the expiration of timeframes for discovery. Mr. Hardy asked that the discovery be expedited to enable the progression of the Application. PLTI affirmed 3-0

DISCUSSION ITEMS

109. Docket 23-10024 Discussion regarding the availability of the 2024 Super Bowl Special Event Application which includes provisions for: additional vehicles, requests for deviations/waivers. The applications also include forms for Tariff Modifications and the Master Lease Agreement Log. There are **separate applications** for use by charter limousine carriers and for use by charter bus carriers. Both applications establish strict deadlines for submission of the applications and compliance items.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock offered a correction to the charter limousine application, page 5. Chief Compliance Audit Investigator Desiree Main stated a collaboration with Ms. Babcock and Ms. Erickson had established the current forms. Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. offered the information that the surcharge the Taxicab Authority utilized during the F1 event was in effect too long and that the TNC's stopped their surcharge immediately after the event. No action was taken.

110. Docket 23-11019 Staff's proposal to have non-consent tow carriers apply for tariff rate increases/decreases during a specified time frame without the necessity of providing financial data in support of the rate changes.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock detailed staff's request. Lucas Foletta, Esq. on behalf of the Nevada State Tow Association, offered a detailed submission and proposal to facilitate possible tariff changes. Michael Baumbach appeared and offered additional information. A discussion ensued. No action taken.

111. Docket 23-11021 Staff's request to modify NTA policy regarding length of time for application compliance periods where the carrier is already operating under a grant of interim order or a temporary transfer of operating rights.

Applications Manager Liz Babcock detailed staff's request to modify Agency policy for a 60 day limit for compliance for any carrier currently operating under an interim order or a temporary transfer of operating rights and the reasoning behind the request. No action taken.

112. Public Comment

Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. stated her thanks to Enforcement Staff for their response to the incident at UNLV.

113. Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 12:44p.m.